
 
 
 

Welcome to the Cedar Lake Improvement Board 
 

Online Public Meeting & Public Hearing 
 

July 23, 2020 
 

Board Members 
 

 
Carolyn Brummund Alcona County Commissioner 

Al Scully Alcona County Road Commission 
Dave Dailey Greenbush Twp. Representative 

Jim Baier Oscoda Twp. Trustee 
Rob Huebel Iosco County Commissioner 
Fred Strauer Iosco County Drain Commissioner 
Rex Vaughn Citizen Riparian Representative 

 



Online Meeting Tips & Best Practices 

1. Be sure to mute your mic (lower-left corner of your screen) as soon as 
you sign on and whenever you are not speaking. This is important 
and perhaps the most critical tip on this list to avoid background 
noise and distractions for others. 

2. Consider muting your video (also on the lower left of the screen) if 
you are eating, scratching, talking with someone else in the room, or 
anything else that might be distracting to others. 

3. Close unneeded applications on your computer to keep the video 
optimally functioning. 

4. You might want to use a headset with an external mic for best 
hearing and speaking capabilities. 

5. When you are speaking, let others know that you are finished by 
saying one of these sign-offs: “That’s all.” “I’m done.” “Thank you.” 
So that everyone knows you have finished your comments. 

6. If you want to speak, physically raise your hand or use the “raise 
hand” feature that is available at the bottom center or bottom right of 
your screen.  This feature may only show up after you expand the 
Participants Pane by clicking the “Participants” icon at the bottom 
center of your screen. 

7. You can ask questions and make comments silently if desired using 
the “Chat” feature (also on the bottom and center of your screen). 

8. Be mindful of your background lighting. If you are sitting in front of 
a window, you may be completely darkened by the light coming 
through the window. Your overhead light also might need to be 
turned off or dimmed as well. 

9. Be sure that there is nothing visually distracting (e.g., cars or people 
going by) in the background too. 

10. Remember to sign out or “leave the meeting” when the session is 
finished. 



  

 1 

Cedar Lake Improvement Board 
Online Public Meeting 
Thursday, July 23, 2020 

10:00 AM 
 

See Page 2 for Online Access Instructions 
 

Proposed Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Online Meeting Operating Protocol 
 

3. Roll Call 
 

4. Public Comment 
 

5. Approval of 7-23-2020 Agenda as presented 
 

6. Approval of Minutes of 4/30/2020 Meeting 
 

7. Old Business 
a. Bloom Sluggett Retainer Agreement, for the record 
b. Cedar Lake Dam, update on construction schedule, perAlcona County Drain Commissioner, mobilization 

date is moving into August, some issues remain concerning the timing and magnitude of the lake level 
draw down 

c. PFAS & VOC Testing at Cedar Lake  - District Health Department No. 2 Press Release – Avoid Foam on 
Cedar Lake due to PFOS Levels.  Press release in Info Packet email. 

 
8. New Business 

a. Review and approve bills that were paid since the 4-30-2020 meeting, or are now due 
i. Kieser & Associates/Doug Pullman LakeScan services, Inv. #20-062 through 6/30/2020, 

$3,832.00 (paid) 
ii. Kieser & Associates, professional services, Inv. 20-061, through 6/20/2020, $6.987.05 (paid) 

iii. Kieser & Associates, professional services, Inv. 20-057, through 4/30/2020, $1,991.25 (paid) 
iv. Kieser & Associates, field instrumentation per contract, Inv. 20-040 , $8,005.80 (paid) 
v. Reimbursement, Rain Gauge Replacement, $390.00 (paid) & $41.10 (new) 

vi. Aquatic Services, June Lake Herbicide Treatment, Inv. #1144, $10,199.50 (paid) 
vii. Bloom Slugget, legal services for S.A.D., Inv. 20348, $1,935.00 (paid) 

b. Cedar Lake Management & Weed Control Special Assessment District 
i. SAD Implemetation Process Step Sheet 

ii. Key dates & milestones 
iii. Review and approval of cost estimates, projects, plans (Kieser & Associates assistance) 
iv. Resolution 2020-1 Draft Review, Discussion, Call for Adoption, and set date for first Public 

Hearing.  Note: Whitmer’s EO 2020-154 extends Remote Public Meetings and Administrative 
Hearings Until the End of the COVID-19 State of Emergency and for 28 days thereafter to the 
extent necessary for public bodies to schedule remote meetings and hearings. 

 
 

9. Public Comment 
 

10. Next Meeting Date: To be set by Board 
 

11. Adjournment 



  

 2 

 

Cedar Lake Improvement Board Online Meeting  
Public Access Instructions 

 
Thursday, July 23, 2020, at 10:00 AM EDT  

 
Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone at:  

 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/154302773 

 
You can also dial in using your phone: 

 
United States: (872) 240-3412  

 
Meeting Access Code: 154-302-773 

 
New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when the meeting starts:  

 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/154302773 

 
If you prefer to use a web browser instead of downloading the GoToMeeting application,  you can 

join the meeting by going to this website: 
 

https://app.gotomeeting.com 
 

Enter the Access Code 154-302-773 when prompted. 
 

Please note that Google Chrome is the preferred web browser. 
 



Cedar Lake Improvement Board Meeting 
Online Via GoToMeeting Service 

Thursday, April 30, 2020   12 p.m. 
 
1.   Call to order 12:05 p.m.     
2.   Online Meeting Operating Protocol was announced. 
3.   Roll Call:   Present---Brummund, Huebel, Vaughn, Scully, Strauer, Baier  

           Absent--- Dailey 
                         Guests:    M. Kieser; B Vokal; D Pullman; J McGuire; P Dailey 
4.   Public Comment:  none 
5.   Agenda: Motion made by Baier/Brummund to approve Agenda as presented. Roll call on motion: All Ayes, motion 
passed. 
6.    Minutes:  Motion made by Brummund/Huebel to approve Minutes of the 12/13/19 as presented.  Roll call on 
motion: All Ayes, motion passed.   
7.   Old Business:  
            a)  Michigan Lakes and Streams Association Annual conference, May 1-2 was cancelled.  All conference pre-
registration and hotel fees fully refunded and returned to CLIB. 
            b) Lake Management Assessment Renewal for 2020:  Must be accomplished by October 1, 2020, if the board is 
inclined to renew.  R Vaughn has talked with the Assessor Nancy Schwickert.  Vaughn recommends legal counsel to 
assist in meeting all the requirements.    Inquiries have been made to NEMCOG regarding possible services available to 
us.  Motion made by Brummund/Huebel to retain Bloom, Sluggett, PC for legal services.  Baier posed questions 
regarding other lake boards, assessment, and any other legal counsel.  Roll call on motion:  All ayes, motion passed. 
                    
8.   New Business: 
            a)  Chemical Bank Checking Account Update: 
                  i.  Motion to remove Ed Roddy from the signatory card at Chemical Bank made by Brummund/Scully.  Roll call 
vote:  All ayes, motion passed. 
                  ii.  Motion to re-confirm that Pat Dailey and Carolyn Brummund remain on the authorized signatory card at 
Chemical Bank made by Huebel/Baier.  Roll call on motion:  All ayes, motion passed. 
            b)  Chemical Bank Certificate of Deposit:  renewed.  Approximate interest earned before renewal $6000. 
            c)   Doug Pullman gave his report.  See his report: 2019 Lake Scan Data & Analysis Report.  Starry Stonewort has 
returned to the south end of the lake in a limited area.  Trench areas showing recurring mil foil patches. 
            d)   K&A 2019 Lake Level/Hydrology Report.  Executive summary and full report available upon request. 
            e)   2019 CLIB Budget Recap review.  Motion to receive and accept 2019 CLIB Budget Recap made by 
Brummund/Huebel.  Roll call vote:  All ayes, motion passed. 
 
(1:18 p.m. F Strauer needed to leave the meeting) 
 
            f)   2020 CLIB Budget review.  Motion to receive and accept 2020 Budget as presented made by Huebel/Scully.  
Roll call vote:  All ayes, motion passed. 
            g)   Review & approve 2020 Estimates, Proposals & Contracts: 
                   i.  Motion to approve K&A/D Pullman LakeScanTM Aquatic Plant Management Services for 2020 made by 
Brummund/Baier.  Roll call vote:  All ayes, motion passed. 
                   ii.  Motion to authorize chair to sign K&A 2020 Professional Services Proposal made by Brummend/Huebel.  
Roll call vote:  All ayes, motion passed. 
                   iii.  Motion to authorize Vaughn to purchase and install Lakeside Rain Gauge replacement made by 
Brummund/Baier.  Roll call vote: All ayes, motion passed. 



CLIB 
Minutes 4/30/20 

Pg 2. 
 
                   iv.  Motion to authorize chair to proceed with communicating with Bloom, Sluggert, PC and if needed 
NEMCOG for the required needs for the special assessment made by Brummund/Scully.  Roll call vote:  All ayes, motion 
passed. 
             h)  Review & approve bills that were paid since the 12-13-19 meeting:  Motion to approve paid and unpaid bills as 
referenced in h) i, ii, iii, iv of the agenda made by Brummund/Huebel.  Roll call vote:  All ayes, motion passed. 
 
 9.   Public Comment – J McGuire had a question regarding a budget line; Brummund thanked Vaughn and Russ Anton 
for all their work. 
10.   Next meeting date:  TBA by the board 
11.  Adjournment:  1:56 pm   
 







 DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT NO. 2 
   Alcona County  Iosco County  Ogemaw County  Oscoda County 

 11 Lake St.  P.O. Box 218 420 W. Lake Street  630 Progress St.   393 S. Mt. Tom Road 

 Harrisville, MI 48740  Tawas City, MI 48764 West  Branch, MI 48661 Mio, MI 48647 

 Tel: 989-724-6757  Tel: 989-362-6183  Tel: 989-345-5020  Tel: 989-826-3970 
 

MEDIA RELEASE 
______________________________________________________ 
For Immediate Release 
Date: June 30, 2020 
Contact: Tracey Wood 
Phone: 989-343-1852 
 
Residents should avoid foam on Cedar Lake due to PFAS and reminded to 

continue avoiding foam on Van Etten Lake 
 
Rinsing off, bathing or showering recommended if you come in contact with foam to 
avoid swallowing PFAS that may be on the skin 
 
During a recent study on foam sampling by the Michigan PFAS Action Response Team 
(MPART), foam collected from Van Etten Lake and Cedar Lake in Iosco and Alcona 
counties was found to have high levels of per and poly-fluoroalkyl substances (PFAS), 
and residents are urged to avoid the foam on those two water bodies. 
 
In the fall of 2019 and spring of 2020, MPART collected and tested foam from lakes and 
rivers where PFAS had previously been identified. The purpose of the study is to 
determine the best way to sample foam and gain more information about how foam 
forms.  
 
As part of the study, foam was collected from Van Etten Lake and Cedar Lake this 
spring. Foam from these lakes has previously been tested for PFAS as part of other foam 
sampling initiatives. The results of the foam samples were shared with the Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS) and District Health Department 
No. 2 (DHD No. 2). 
 
The test results from Van Etten Lake found PFOS, one type of PFAS, at 220,000 parts 
per trillion (ppt) in foam. Previous PFAS tests done on foam from Van Etten Lake found 
PFOS ranged from 24 ppt to 148,000 ppt. These differences could be due to the lake’s 
proximity to the former Wurtsmith Air Force base, which is a source of PFAS in the area. 
The avoid foam advisory, already in place for Van Etten Lake, is still in place and is 
health protective, especially for young children. 
 
Results from the spring test also found PFOS in foam from Cedar Lake at 7,260 ppt. A 
previous test, done in December 2018, found PFOS at 158 ppt. MDHHS is evaluating the 
foam data. 
 



At this time, MDHHS and DHD No. 2 recommend avoiding the foam on Cedar Lake 
since the amount of PFAS in foam can vary. This recommendation is also health 
protective, especially for young children.  

If you come into contact with foam, MDHHS and DHD No. 2 recommend rinsing it off, 
and bathing or showering after the day’s outdoor activities to avoid swallowing PFAS 
that may be on the skin. Swallowing foam with PFAS could harm your health.  

The Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) has 
indicated the specific PFAS in foam from Cedar Lake are not similar to those in foam 
from Van Etten Lake. The source of PFAS in Cedar Lake is unknown. The groundwater 
does not flow from the former Wurtsmith Air Force Base to Cedar Lake per current 
groundwater evaluations. EGLE is in the process of identifying potential sources of 
PFAS to Cedar Lake. 
 
For health questions related to PFAS and foam, call MDHHS at 800-648-6942. More 
information about PFAS and foam can be found at Michigan.gov/PFASResponse on the 
PFAS Foam webpage. EGLE and DHHS are working to update the PFAS Foam on Lakes 
and Streams webpage and provide all foam data collected. The final foam study report 
will be posted to this site. 
 

https://www.michigan.gov/pfasresponse/0,9038,7-365-88059_91295---,00.html
https://www.michigan.gov/pfasresponse/0,9038,7-365-86514---,00.html
https://www.michigan.gov/pfasresponse/0,9038,7-365-88059_91295---,00.html
https://www.michigan.gov/pfasresponse/0,9038,7-365-88059_91295---,00.html


Invoice
DATE

7/6/2020

INVOICE #

20-062
BILL TO:

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd.
C/O:  Rex Vaughn
P.O. Box 53
Greenbush, MI  48738

536 E. Michigan Avenue
Suite 300
Kalamazoo, MI  49007

P.O. NO. TERMS

Net 30

Phone #

2693447117

Fax #

(269) 344-2493

Total

DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Cedar Lake - 2020/ 2021 Lakescan Agreement
          Invoicing 100% - Client Communications/ Project Coord.  580.00  580.00
          Invoicing 100% - Pre-Season Survey  1,132.00  1,132.00
          Invoicing 100% - Early-Season Survey  2,120.00  2,120.00

This invoice is for professional services rendered through 6-30-20,
as related to Cedar Lake Improvement Board, 2020/ 2021 Lakescan
Agreement.

Please remit payment to Kieser & Associates, LLC
For questions, please contact Becky Hough. USD 3,832.00



Invoice
DATE

7/6/2020

INVOICE #

20-061
BILL TO:

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd.
C/o  Rex Vaughn
PO Box 53
Greenbush, MI  48738

536 E. Michigan Avenue
Suite 300
Kalamazoo, MI  49007

P.O. NO.

2020-2021 Budget

TERMS

Net 30

Phone #

2693447117

Fax #

(269) 344-2493

Total

DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

GIS Specialist - Task 1  1.75  85.00  148.75
Senior Scientist/ Principal - Task 1  0.5  185.00  92.50
Field Services Manager - Task 3  3.5  60.00  210.00
Field Services Manager - Task 4  15.5  60.00  930.00
Mileage to/from Cedar Lake, 5/27 & 5/28/20 - Task 4  280.80  280.80
Boat Use & Meter Use Fee, 5/27 & 5/28/20 - Task 4  150.00  150.00
Professional Engineer - Task 5  0.5  140.00  70.00
Senior Scientist/ Principal - Task 5  0.25  185.00  46.25
Professional Engineer - Task 6  5.5  140.00  770.00
Project Scientist II - Task 6  9  65.00  585.00
Project Technician - Task 6  3  45.00  135.00
Senior Scientist/ Principal - Task 6  5.5  185.00  1,017.50
Environmental Engineer I - Task 6  22  95.00  2,090.00
GIS Specialist - Task 6  1.5  85.00  127.50
Project Scientist II - Task 7  1  65.00  65.00
Field Services Manager - Task 7  1  60.00  60.00
Senior Scientist/ Principal - Task 8  0.75  185.00  138.75
Professional Engineer - Task 8  0.5  140.00  70.00

This invoice is for professional services rendered through 6-30-20,
as related to Cedar Lake Improvement Bd., 2020-2021 Budget.

Please remit payment to Kieser & Associates, LLC
For questions, please contact Becky Hough. USD 6,987.05



Cedar Lake Improvement Bd Date Name Duration Cost Notes

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 1 - Lake Board Coordination

 04/22/2020 Benston, Susan  0.50 42.50 CLIB meeting setup email and GoToMeeting review

04/23/2020 Benston, Susan  0.50 42.50 CLIB meeting setup

05/01/2020 Benston, Susan F. 0.75 63.75 Meeting recording

04/30/2020 Kieser, Mark 0.50 92.50 2020 Scope Considerations

Total Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 1: 2.25 241.25

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 3 - Acquire 17 New Level Loggers (Phase I & II)

05/07/2020 Kieser, Josh 0.50 30.00 New Logger Purchase- Placing quote inquiry with Heron Instruments.

05/26/2020 Kieser, Josh 3.00 180.00 New Level Logger purchase and setup

Total Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 3: 3.50 210.00

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 4 - Prepare & Install 17 New Level Loggers

05/27/2020 Kieser, Josh 14.00 840.00 New Level Logger purchase and setup

05/28/2020 Kieser, Josh 1.50 90.00 Finish level logger setup/ install

Total Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 4: 15.50 930.00

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 5 - Sherman Creek Grade Structure Review

05/01/2020 Jacobson, John 0.50 70.00 Review winter data for sherman creek & Kings Corner

05/29/2020 Kieser, Mark 0.25 46.25 Sherman Creek Photos/ Considerations

Total Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 5: 0.75 116.25

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 6 - Watershed Management Plan Updates

05/13/2020 Jacobson, John A. 0.50 70.00  Review of Cedar Lake ground water maps and discuss with Mike

04/21/2020 Jacobson, John A. 4.00 560.00 Analysis of Berm Overflow numbers

04/21/2020 Jacobson, John A. 1.00 140.00 Review of data for Berm overflow

05/05/2020 Metzner, Gabby 2.00 130.00 Updates to watershed management plan

05/06/2020 Metzner, Gabby 3.00 195.00 Watershed Management plan updates

05/08/2020 Metzner, Gabby 4.00 260.00 WMP Updates



06/03/2020 King, Katelyn 3.00 135.00 Rview of Cedar Lake Watershed Management Plan

06/24/2020 Kieser, Mark 0.75 138.75 Fisheries Topic with Rex V. and D. Pullman

06/29/2020 Kieser, Mark 0.75 138.75 GW modeling considerations

06/29/2020 Kieser, Mark 2.25 416.25 Swimmer's Itch concerns/ needs from Rex V.

06/30/2020 Kieser, Mark 0.25 46.25 PFAS issues on Cedar

06/30/2020 Kieser, Mark 1.50 277.50 WMP Fisheries; Swimmer's Itch considerations

05/01/2020 Foster, Michael E. 4.00 380.00 Groundwater modeling and analysis

05/04/2020 Foster, Michael E. 3.00 285.00 Cedar Lake groundwater modeling

05/05/2020 Foster, Michael E. 2.00 190.00 Groundwater modeling and analysis

05/08/2020 Foster, Michael E. 1.00 95.00 Groundwater modeling analysis

05/11/2020 Foster, Michael E. 4.00 380.00 Gound water modeling and analysis

05/12/2020 Foster, Michael E. 2.00 190.00 Groundwater modeling and analysis

05/13/2020 Foster, Michael E. 1.00 95.00 Call and emails with John Jacobson on groundwater analysis

05/22/2020 Foster, Michael E. 3.00 285.00 Groundwater modeling and analysis

05/26/2020 Foster, Michael E. 2.00 190.00 Groundwater analysis

05/12/2020 Benston, Susan F. 1.50 127.50 display of MODFLOW outputs

Total Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 6: 46.50 4,725.00

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 7 - Seasonal Level Logger Data Download/ Retrieval

06/30/2020 Metzner, Gabby 1.00 65.00 Seasonal Level Logger Download

06/30/2020 Kieser, Josh 1.00 60.00 Seasonal Level Logger Download

Total Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 7: 2.00 125.00

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 8 - Hydrology Report for 2020 Data

04/16/2020 Kieser, Mark 0.50 92.50 Hydrology data review

04/21/2020 Kieser, Mark 0.25 46.25 Hydrology report

06/29/2020 Jacobson, John 0.50 70.00 Review of data with Mike Foster (K&A)

Total Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 8: 1.25 208.75

TOTAL - CEDAR LAKE IMPORVEMENT BD: 71.75 6,556.25



Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Direct Costs
Task 4 05/27/2020 Mileage to lake  140.40 Approx. 260 miles at .54 per mile

Task 4 05/28/2020 Mileage from lake  140.40 Approx. 260 miles at .54 per mile

Task 4 05/27/2020 Boat Use Fee  100.00 Boat Use Fee  

Task 4 05/27/2020 Meter Use Fee  50.00 Meter Use Fee 

TOTAL - CEDAR LAKE IMPROVEMENT BD - DIRECT COSTS: 430.80

 



Invoice
DATE

6/29/2020

INVOICE #

20-057
BILL TO:

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd.
C/o  Rex Vaughn
PO Box 53
Greenbush, MI  48738

536 E. Michigan Avenue
Suite 300
Kalamazoo, MI  49007

P.O. NO.

2019-2020 Budget

TERMS

Net 30

Phone #

2693447117

Fax #

(269) 344-2493

Total

DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

GIS Specialist - Task 1  1.25  85.00  106.25
Senior Scientist/ Principal - Task 1  2  200.00  400.00
Professional Engineer - Task 6  0.5  160.00  80.00
Senior Scientist/ Principal - Task 6  0.25  200.00  50.00
Environmental Engineer I - Task 6  11  100.00  1,100.00
GIS Specialist - Task 6  3  85.00  255.00

This invoice is for professional services rendered between 4-01-20
& 4-30-20, as related to Cedar Lake Improvement Bd., 2019-2020
Budget.

Please remit payment to Kieser & Associates, LLC
For questions, please contact Becky Hough. USD 1,991.25



       Kieser & Associates, LLC
 Time by Job Detail

 April 1, 2020 - May 31, 2020

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd Date Name Duration Cost Notes

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 1 - Lake Board Coordination

04/30/2020 Benston, Susan F. 1.25 106.25 Meeting facilitation and recording

04/30/2020 Kieser, Mark 2.00 400.00 Lake Board Call Participation

Total Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 1: 3.25 506.25

Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 6 - Data Mgmt, Analysis, Database Updates, GW Modeling, Projections, & Reporting 

04/22/2020 Jacobson, John A. 0.50 80.00 Report review on flows.

04/03/2020 Kieser, Mark 0.25 50.00 Permit exemption considerations

04/03/2020 Foster, Michael E. 2.00 200.00 Groundwater model setup and data analysis

04/17/2020 Foster, Michael E. 2.00 200.00 Groundwater modeling

04/22/2020 Foster, Michael E. 3.00 300.00 ModFlow model setup

04/27/2020 Foster, Michael E. 2.00 200.00 Groundwater modeling and analysis

04/29/2020 Foster, Michael E. 2.00 200.00 Groundwater modeling and analysis

04/29/2020 Benston, Susan F. 3.00 255.00 Gathering data inputs for Modeling for M. Foster

Total Cedar Lake Improvement Bd:  Task 6: 14.75 1,485.00

TOTAL - CEDAR LAKE IMPORVEMENT BD: 18.00 1,991.25

 Page 1 of 1



Invoice
DATE

5/11/2020

INVOICE #

20-040
BILL TO:

Cedar Lake Improvement Board
c/o Rex Vaughn
PO Box 53
Greenbush, MI  48738

536 E. Michigan Avenue
Suite 300
Kalamazoo, MI  49007

P.O. NO. TERMS

Net 30

Phone #

2693447117

Fax #

(269) 344-2493

Total

DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Heron Instruments - Invoice# 23728,  Dated:  5/08/20  8,005.80  8,005.80

This invoice is for the purchase of equipment for Cedar Lake
Improvement Bd, 2020-2021.

Please remit payment to Kieser & Associates, LLC
For questions, please contact Becky Hough. USD 8,005.80



���
�	
��$�

�
��
��

��& �����

���

��& ����� 

 40<0;����<<9.4,=0<�!!�
�����	�"4.342,8��?0��'=0����
 ,6,7,C99��"��������

���!�� 

 40<0;����<<9.4,=0<�!!�
�����	�"4.342,8��?0��'=0����
 ,6,7,C99��"��������
�==8���9<3>,� 40<0;����������

���

���

����� �

����&������

��"�#

#0=���

���!����

)%'

�"������

-39>23�540<0;�,<<9.4,=0<	.97


������� � ��������

�� ����

�����������

	�'��

�����������

������

,..9>8=482�30;9848<=;>708=<	.97

@@@	30;9848<=;>708=<	.97 ����

������	���	

���	������

����"9A60B�&/
�>8/,<��$#��!�����
������������

'34::482�=0;7<����+*����8.9=0;7<����
��%;9.0<<482��00�19;��;0/4=��,;/�%,B708=<
���	���%;9.0<<482��00�19;�*4;0�(;,8<10;�%,B708=<

�$�� ��#�"�!$� � ��"����%���"�$( �"�������� �� %�$

������ /4::0;!92����A�������"
���
���B0,;�@,;;,8=B�
���������%;0<<>;0���(07:0;,=>;0��,=,�'0=<
��A:0.=0/�-,==0;B�6410�>:�=9����B0,;<

��� ����	�� ������	��

���� -,;!92�� ����	�� ����	��

'�� '34::482�,8/��,8/6482�� ���	�� ���	��

)'�������	��

)'�������	��

)'���	��















���	���
����

����	�	�

���������

����

������

�$# /�� ($��*-/,3$*$+1��, /#
����,4��

�/$$+!20&���������
�

�.2 1'"��$/3'"$0���+"�

�	����'#%$��#�
�����,4�

�,,#/'"&��������
�


�	����� ����

�$1�
�


������

�	
��

������������������� ���� ������

�,+1 "1��$/!'"'#$0�� ������ ��	�����
�501$*'"���$/!'"'#$0�	������� ������ 
�����
�501$*'"��$/!'"'#$0��	��������)1/ � ������ ��
����
�1 //5� ������ ������

����������















DRAFT – Rev 4 
(July 23, 2020) 

  

 
CEDAR LAKE MANAGEMENT & WEED CONTROL 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT  

BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2020-1 

This Resolution: 

(1) Indicates that the Cedar Lake Improvement Board intends to proceed with the 
public improvements and to defray the associated costs and expenses by means of specially 
assessing the lands in the special assessment district; and 

(2) Sets a public hearing date and time to hear objections, if any, to the proposed 
special assessment district, and to the public improvements. 

 

The Notice of the Public Hearing must be: 

(1) Published twice in a local newspaper, with the first publication to be at least 20 
days before the hearing; and 

(2) Mailed once at least 20 days before the hearing to each owner of, or any party 
having an interest in, property to be assessed, whose name appears upon the last Greenbush 
Township and Oscoda Township tax assessment rolls for ad valorem tax purposes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

THIS COVER SHEET IS FOR INSTRUCTIONAL PURPOSES ONLY. 
PLEASE REMOVE BEFORE SUBMITTING 

RESOLUTION FOR ADOPTION. 



 

{14421-002-00106383.7} 
- 1 - 

CEDAR LAKE IMPROVEMENT BOARD 
ALCONA COUNTY AND IOSCO COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-1 

CEDAR LAKE MANAGEMENT & WEED CONTROL 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 

 
DECLARATION OF INTENT TO MAKE PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENTS; TENTATIVE DESIGNATION  

OF THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT;  
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Minutes of a regular public meeting of the Cedar Lake Improvement Board (“Board”) 

having jurisdiction in Alcona County and Iosco County, Michigan, held via electronic video 

conferencing on July 23, 2020, at 10:00 a.m., local time. 

PRESENT: Board Members          

            

ABSENT: Board Members           

The following resolution was offered for adoption by Board Member 

___________________ and supported by Board Member __________________: 

WHEREAS, MCL 324.30901 et seq, as amended (the “Act”), provides for the making of 
certain improvements by Michigan statutory lake improvement boards and provides the means to 
finance the improvements; and  

WHEREAS, in the case of public improvements involving the improvement to or 
maintenance of a lake or other body of water, the Act provides that the Board may proceed, on 
its own initiative, to carry out the public improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the Board intends to proceed to undertake certain public improvements (i.e. 
the control and eradication of certain aquatic weeds and also lake management activities and 
certain other improvements) as described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Public 
Improvements”) with regard to Cedar Lake located within Alcona County and Iosco County; and 

WHEREAS, the nature of the Public Improvements is such that a periodic 
redetermination of costs may be necessary without a change in the special assessment district 
boundaries and, if at any time during the term of the special assessment district an actual 
incremental costs equals or exceeds the estimate or the prior year’s costs by 10% or more, notice 



 

{14421-002-00106383.7} - 2 - 

 

shall be given and a hearing afforded to the property owners and interested parties of record in 
the special assessment district; and 

WHEREAS, there exists a need for the Public Improvements for Cedar Lake; and 

WHEREAS, the Act provides the means to finance the Public Improvements in this 
matter.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED: 

1. That the Board intends to proceed on its own initiative to make the Public 
Improvements as described in Exhibit A. 

2. That the Board has authorized the preparation of plans showing the Public 
Improvements, their location, and an estimate of the costs thereof. 

3. That the plans and the estimate of costs have been filed with the Greenbush 
Township Clerk and also the Oscoda Township Clerk, as well as the Chairman of the Cedar Lake 
Improvement Board. 

4. That the Board anticipates assessing the costs of the Public Improvements on a 
yearly basis beginning in 2020 based upon the estimates on file with the Board, Greenbush 
Township and Oscoda Township and the resolutions adopted by the Board pursuant to this 
process.  Each year thereafter on or before September 30, the Board shall, to the extent possible, 
ascertain the project costs for the coming year.  The Board shall establish the amount to be 
assessed based on unexpended funds, cash on hand, and the estimated project costs for that year 
and assesses that amount.  The costs for administration and legal expenses for setting up this 
special assessment district shall be assessed in 2020.  

5. That the Board hereby tentatively designates a special assessment district known 
as the Cedar Lake Management & Weed Control Special Assessment District, consisting of 
certain parcels of property described as set forth in the Notice of Public Hearing attached hereto 
as Exhibit B, which descriptions are incorporated herein by reference for the special assessment 
district, and against which parcels all or a portion of the costs of said Public Improvements shall 
be assessed. 

6. That the Board shall hold a public hearing on _____________, 2020, at 10 a.m. at 
the Greenbush Township Hall at 5039 Campbell Street, Greenbush, Michigan 48738, to hear and 
consider objections to the proposed Public Improvements, the special assessment district 
tentatively designated herein, and all other matters relating to said proposed Public 
Improvements. 

7. That the Board shall cause to be published a Notice of the Public Hearing in the 
Alcona Review and Oscoda Press newspapers of general circulation within both Greenbush 
Township and Oscoda Township, at least two (2) times prior to the public hearing, with the first 
publication at least twenty (20) days prior to the public hearing.  Proofs of publication of such 
notice shall be filed with the Board. 



 

{14421-002-00106383.7} - 3 - 

 

8. That the Board, at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the public hearing, shall 
also send a Notice of the Public Hearing by first class mail addressed to each record owner, or 
party in interest, of each parcel of property to be assessed, at the address shown for each such 
owner or party in interest upon the last respective Greenbush Township and also Oscoda 
Township tax assessment records and rolls for ad valorem tax purposes, as supplemented by any 
subsequent changes in the names or addresses of the owners or parties listed therein, except in 
the case of railroad companies, who shall be mailed a Notice of the Public Hearing by registered 
mail within five (5) days after the first publication of the notice described in Paragraph 7 above.  
If a record owner’s name does not appear on the respective Township tax assessment records, 
then the notice required by this paragraph shall be given to the record owner at the address 
shown by the records of the County Register of Deeds. 

9. That the form of the Notice of the Public Hearing to be mailed and published, as 
required herein, shall be substantially as set forth in Exhibit B hereto, with the published notice 
not listing all of the individual parcels. 

10. That all actions heretofore taken by Board officials, employees, and agents with 
respect to the Public Improvements and proceedings under the Act are hereby ratified and 
confirmed.  

11. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be and the 
same are hereby rescinded.  

YEAS: Board Members          

            

NAYS: Board Members           

ABSENT: Board Members           

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

_________________________ 
Rex Vaughn 
Chairman of the Cedar Lake 
Improvement Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

{14421-002-00106383.7} - 4 - 

 

 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN  ) 

) ss.  
COUNTY OF ALCONA  ) 

I, _________________, Chairman of the Cedar Lake Improvement Board, hereby certify 
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Cedar Lake 
Improvement Board at a public meeting held on July 23 2020, and that public notice of said 
meeting was given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, 
including, in the case of a special or rescheduled meeting, notice by publication or posting at 
least eighteen (18) hours prior to the time set for the meeting. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have affixed my official signature this ____ day of 
________________, 2020. 

 

____________________ 
Rex Vaughn 
Chairman of the Cedar Lake 
Improvement Board 

 



 

 A-1 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Description of the Public Improvements; Cost Estimates 

Control and partial eradication of aquatic plants and weeds within Cedar Lake by means 
of chemical and/or biological means and/or weed harvesting and also lake management activities 
and lake studies. 

Projected/Estimated Total Cost for the Public Improvements  
 for the Entire Duration of the Special Assessment -   

 
$ 1,140,000.00 

 
Projected/Estimated Total Cost per Year of the Public 
 Improvements -  

 
$ 114,000.00 

 
Projected/Estimated Cost per Assessed Parcel per Year - $ 150.00 

 
[All costs and assessments are subject to changes and increases as provided by the Act] 

 

Cedar Lake Estimated Category Costs for 2021-2030 
 
1) Invasive & Nuisance Aquatic/Wetlands Plant Management    $772,000 

a) Herbicide applications 

b) Lake aquatic plant management consulting 

2) Watershed Management Plan Implementation 

a) Lake hydrology         $190,000 

i) Surface water flow monitoring 

(1) Sherman Creek 

(2) Kings Corner Berm 

(3) Jones Creek with possible method adjustments 

(a) Flow monitoring approach adjustment 

(b) Flow management volume benefits assessment 

(4) Lake Outflow  

ii) Groundwater level monitoring 

(1) Northwest cedar swamp 

(2) Lake perimeter locations 

iii) Miscellaneous monitoring equipment replacements 



 

 A-2 

 

iv) New monitoring installations as needed 

v) Annual reporting 

b) Additional surface water modification assessment on CLIB land   $15,000 

c) Additional Northwest cedar swamp control options for Jones Creek  $32,000 

d) Phase III of Lake Level Augmentation Feasibility Evaluation   $25,000 

e) Local government policies/ordinances for NW Cedar Swamp protection  $10,000 

i) Fisheries assessments - Pike spawning improvements    $12,000 

f) Swimmer’s itch control feasibility study     $35,600 

i) Technical evaluation of control options for the mollusk vector  

(1) Chemical treatment options, existing & emerging 

(2) Reevaluate Redear sunfish planting @ sustainable level 

g) PFAS/PFOS/PFOA Surface Water Sampling     $13,900 

h) Muck sediment contaminant testing       $10,000 

i) Water quality monitoring        $4,500 

i) Emerging issues 

ii) Bacteria 

iii) Septic systems 

j) Invasive species prevention and management    $5,000 

i) Fish (round gobies) 

ii) Mussels (zebra, quagga)  

iii) Crustaceans (red swamp crayfish) 

iv) Water fowl (cormorants/geese) 

v) Signage and education 

3) Special Assessment District Implementation & Administrative Costs  $15,000 

a) Legal Assistance 

b) Assessment Roll Creation 

c) Mailings and Public Notices 

 

 
 



 

 B-1 

 

EXHIBIT B 

THE CEDAR LAKE IMPROVEMENT BOARD 
Alcona County and Iosco County, Michigan 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CEDAR LAKE MANAGEMENT & WEED CONTROL SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT  

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Cedar Lake Improvement Board on its own 
initiative, intends to proceed pursuant to MCL 324.30901 et seq, as amended (the “Act”), to 
make certain public improvements consisting of the control and partial eradication of aquatic 
plants and weeds within Cedar Lake by means of chemical treatment, biological agents, and/or 
mechanical harvesting, as well as undertake lake management activities and lake studies and 
reports (collectively, the “Public Improvements”).  The Board has tentatively determined that 
some or all of the costs of the Public Improvements shall be specially assessed against each of 
the following described lots and parcels of land (all of which have lake frontage on Cedar Lake), 
which are benefitted by the Public Improvements and which together comprise the proposed 
Cedar Lake Special Assessment District No. 1, and which parcels and lots are as follows: 

Permanent Parcel No. Street Address 
 

Permanent Parcel No. Street Address     
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

    
    
    
    
    
  

  
 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 
	  



 

 B-2 

 

Permanent Parcel No. Street Address  Permanent Parcel No. Street Address      
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 

	  



 

 B-3 

 

 
 

FIRST PUBLIC HEARING 

TAKE NOTICE that the Cedar Lake Improvement Board will hold a public hearing on 
_____________, 2020 at 10 a.m. at the Greenbush Township Hall at 5039 Campbell Street, 
Greenbush, Michigan 48738, to hear and consider any objections to the proposed Public 
Improvements, the proposed Special Assessment District, the proposed special assessment, and 
all other matters relating to the Public Improvements. 

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that a description of the Public Improvements and estimates 
of cost for the Public Improvements are on file with the Board (as well as with Greenbush 
Township and Oscoda Township) for public examination.  

PROPERTY SHALL NOT BE ADDED TO THE PROPOSED SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT AND THE ORIGINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS SHALL NOT BE 
INCREASED BY 10% OR MORE PER YEAR WITHOUT FURTHER NOTICE AND 
PUBLIC HEARING. 



 

 B-4 

 

Periodic redeterminations of the costs of the Public Improvements may be necessary, 
without a change in the Special Assessment District, and in that event, such redeterminations 
may be made by the Board without further notice to record owners or parties in interest in the 
lands in the Special Assessment District, in accordance with the provisions of the Act (unless the 
amounts assessed increase by 10% or more from the prior year, in which case notice and public 
hearing will occur).  

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that a property owner or person in interest must either 
appear and object at the public hearing or submit a letter of appearance and objection to the 
Cedar Lake Improvement Board prior to the public hearing in order to preserve the person’s right 
to appeal the special assessment to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.  A record owner of land may 
appeal a special assessment by filing a written appeal with the Michigan Tax Tribunal within 30 
days after written confirmation of the special assessment roll. 

Should the Cedar Lake Improvement Board determine at the above-mentioned hearing to 
approve the proposed special assessment district, then thereafter, a second hearing will be held to 
confirm the tax roll for the special assessment district.  

This notice was authorized by the Cedar Lake Improvement Board. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, PLEASE CONTACT: 

Rex Vaughn 
Chairman of the Cedar Lake Improvement Board 

PO Box 53 
Greenbush, Michigan 48738 

Phone: 810-516-6686 
 


